#### **HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE**

(Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority)

#### 16 September 2015

Present:-

Councillors Bown (Chair), Chugg, Dyke (vice Horsfall), Knight, Thomas and Wheeler

Apologies:-

Received from Councillor Burridge-Clayton.

#### \*HRMDC/9. Minutes

**RESOLVED** that the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2015 be signed as a correct record.

#### \*HRMDC/10. Absence Management

The Committee received for information a report of the Director of Corporate Services (HRMDC/15/5) that set out the sickness absence levels for staff to date since combination in 2007, together with comparisons against the 2014/15 performance and benchmarking data for other fire and rescue services nationaly.

It was noted that the current level of sickness absence was 3.11 days/shifts lost per person as opposed to 3.10 days/shifts lost in the same period in 2014/15. Long term sickness absence was starting to decrease, with 15 firefighters currently off (out of an establishment of 562) as opposed to 28 in 2007/08. Additionally, there was 4 support staff off on long term sickness absence currently with no absence in fire control.

Reference was made in particular to the benchmarking data showing comparisons with other fire and rescue services nationally. This showed that musculoskeletal injuries were the main cause of injury for both wholetime and retained duty staff. The Human Resources Manager advised that the Service had now corrected the issues with the sickness absence portal that had been reported to the Committee previously. In response to a question as to why it had taken some time to make the correction required to the portal, the Human Resources Manager indicated that the required changes had to be implemented by the Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Department who had other more pressing work on the Networked Fire Control Systems Project that had taken a higher priority.

In terms of the reporting of the sickness absence, the point was made that if the data for 2007/08 was taken out, the figures painted a different picture with a fairly stable line until 2014/15 when this had spiked again. The Human Resources Manager reported that in 2014/15, the Service had been subject to industrial action and there had been issues with morale and changes to crewing which had all impacted on the figures.

The Committee expressed the view that the Service's performance on sickness absence in 2014/15 had not been good and that it did not appear to have improved in 2015/16 to date. It was hoped that, with the actions set out in the Appendix to the report, the performance would improve in the latter part of 2015/16.

#### \*HRMDC/11. Redundancy Compensation Rates

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Services (HRMDC/15/6) setting out information required for the Committee to review the redundancy compensation rates for uniformed and non-uniformed staff in 2015/16 with a view to making a recommendation to the Fire and Rescue Authority thereon.

The Human Resources Manager referred to the Appendix circulated with the report that set out the level of compensation rates applied currently by other fire and rescue and local authorities in the South West. The report also referenced the legal basis for enhancements to redundancy compensation payments. The Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006 applied compensation provisions to employing bodies listed in Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008. The National Employers had previously advised, however, that the 2008 Regulations applied only to fire and rescue authority employees conditioned to the Local Government Pension Scheme and not to operational firefighters conditioned to one of the Firefighters' Pensions Schemes.

This position had been challenged recently, however, by two fire and rescue authorities and Queens Counsel opinion sought. This Opinion was unequivocal in stating that fire and rescue authorities could lawfully offer enhancements to redundancies for operational firefighters by virtue of the "power of competence" contained in Section 5A of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011). The Opinion advised that, should an authority be mindful to apply enhancements, it should do so evenly (i.e. the same enhancement for staff conditioned to the Local Government Pension Scheme as for those conditioned to a Firefighters' Pension Scheme) to eliminate any risk of potential challenge under the equalities legislation.

The Opinion originally obtained had initially been challenged by the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and in light of this, further clarification sought. The second Opinion, however, reinforced the first and in light of this DCLG had indicated that it would not be pursuing the matter further. Consequently, it was considered that the unequivocal Queens Counsel opinion could be relied upon by the Authority should it wish to apply the enhanced rate of redundancy compensation to both uniformed and non-uniformed staff.

During a debate on this matter, the Committee made the following points:

- The Authority did not have to apply any enhancement to its redundancy compensation rate;
- The Queen's Counsel opinion had not been tested in court yet;
- There was a reluctance to apply the enhancement for operational firefighters before any other Service had implemented it;
- There was a need for equality in the redundancy compensation applied to both uniformed and non-uniformed staff in the Service;
- There was an issue of prudency and perception to be considered as provision would need to be made in the revenue budget should the enhanced rate be applied to uniformed staff to cover the increased costs at a time when the Authority's resources were reducing;

 The current redundancy compensation rate was out of kilter with other local authorities in the South West.

The Human Resources Manager confirmed that there was a need for equality in its approach on this matter. He added that the Service had a collective agreement with the Representative Body for non-uniformed staff in respect of payment of redundancy calculated on the basis of an actual week's pay rather than the indicative statutory maximum. Should the Authority wish to revert to payment of the statutory maximum, then notice would need to be given of the intention to terminate the collective agreement. The Democratic and Legal Services Manager also referred to paragraph 2.8 of the report in terms of the need to strike a balance between any additional cost to the Authority and what might be a suitable level of compensation to encourage appropriate staff to consider voluntary redundancy. In this respect, attention was drawn to the level of staffing reductions needed to meet the requirements of the approved Corporate Plan 2013/14 to 2015/16.

The view was expressed, however, that the potential increase in resources needed to meet any additional costs associated with applying an enhanced redundancy package to operational firefighters should be considered carefully in the current economic climate.

Councillor Knight MOVED (seconded by Councillor Dyke):

"that it be recommended to the Authority that it reduces its current redundancy compensation rate to a multiplier of 1 using the actual week's pay for both voluntary and compulsory redundancy and that this multiplier be extended to uniformed staff with effect from 7 October 2015".

Upon being put to the vote (5 for, 1 against), the motion was **CARRIED** whereupon it was

**RESOLVED** that the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority be recommended to:

- (a) reduce its current compensation rate to a multiplier of 1 using the actual week's pay for both voluntary and compulsory redundancy and that this multiplier be extended to uniformed staff;
- (b) implement the multiplier of 1 with effect from 7 October 2015;
- (c) endorse, subject to (d) below, that further reviews of the compensation rates should be undertaken on an annual basis by the Human Resources Management & Development Committee, with any recommended changes to the compensation rate [and associated date for application of any revised compensation rate] being made to the full Authority;
- (d) That any future proposed revision of the compensation rates would be subject to consultation with the trade unions.

# \*HRMDC/12. <u>Firefighters' Pensions Schemes - Exercise of Discretions - Further Considerations</u>

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Services (HRMDC/15/7) identifying the pensions discretions available to the Authority under the various Firefighters' Pensions Schemes from 1992 onwards following consideration of this matter by the Local Pension Board on 4 September 2015.

It was noted that a revised Schedule had been prepared following the consensus reached at the Local Pensions Board meeting and this was now recommended to the Authority for approval.

**RESOLVED** that the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority be recommended to approve:

- (a) the proposed general policies to apply in relation to those discretions from each of the Firefighters Pensions Schemes from 1992 onwards, as set out in Schedule 1 to report HRMDC/15/7;
- (b) that those discretions in the Firefighters Pensions Schemes from 1992 onwards of a more Scheme administrative or individualised, case-bycase basis, as identified in Schedule 2 to report HRMDC/15/7, be exercised in accordance with Section 2, paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6 of the report;
- (c) those recommendations as set out in Section 3 of report HRMDC/15/7 and relating to Firefighters' Pensions Schemes prior to 1992; and
- (d) authorising the Clerk, pending approval of the above recommendations, to make any consequential changes to the Authority Constitutional Framework documents (notably, the Committee Terms of Reference, the approved Scheme of Delegations and Financial Regulations), to reflect the above approvals.

#### \*HRMDC/13. Retirement & Re-Employment

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Services (HRMDC/15/8) that set out a request that had been made by a uniformed member of staff for retirement and re-employment in accordance with the requirements of the Authority's Pay Policy Statement.

**RESOLVED** that the request for retirement & re-employment as identified in paragraph 2.4 of report HRMDC/15/8 be approved.

\* DENOTED DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

The meeting started at 10.00hours and finished at 11.55hours

REPORT REFERENCE NO.	HRMD	C/15/7	
MEETING	HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE		
DATE OF MEETING	16 SEPTEMBER 2015		
SUBJECT OF REPORT	FIREF	IGHTERS PENSIONS SCHEMES – EXERCISE OF RETIONS – FURTHER CONSIDERATIONS	
LEAD OFFICER	Direct	or of Corporate Services	
RECOMMENDATIONS		ne contents of this report be considered with a view to immending that the Authority approves:	
	(a)	the proposed general policies to apply in relation to those discretions from each of the Firefighters Pensions Schemes from 1992 onwards, as set out in Schedule 1 to this report;	
	(b)	that those discretions in the Firefighters Pensions Schemes from 1992 onwards of a more Scheme administrative or individualised, case-by-case basis, as identified in Schedule 2 to this report, be exercised in accordance with Section 2, paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6 of this report;	
	(d)	authorising the Clerk, pending approval of the above recommendations, to make any consequential changes to the Authority Constitutional Framework documents (notably, the Committee Terms of Reference, the approved Scheme of Delegations and Financial Regulations), to reflect the above approvals; and	
	(d)	those recommendations as set out in Section 3 of this report and relating to Firefighters' Pensions Schemes prior to 1992.	
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	report discret Pensio	Il Authority, at its meeting on 29 July 2015, considered a joint of the Chief Fire Officer and Clerk to the Authority identifying ions available to the Authority under the various Firefighters ons Schemes from 1992 onwards and proposing either a general or alternative methodology for discharging those discretions.	
	opport the Loc Schem Firefigl govern	uthority resolved to defer determination of this matter pending the unity for the proposals to be considered and commented on by cal Pensions Board established to assist the Authority (as ne Manager) in securing compliance with Regulations relating to hters Pensions Schemes and ensuring the effective and efficient cance and administration of the Schemes (Minutes DSFRA/46 [20 ary 2015 meeting] and DSFRA/20 [29 July 2015 meeting] refer).	
	meetin reflect invited	atter was duly considered by the Local Pensions Board at its g on 4 September 2015. The revised Schedules to this report the consensus agreed at that meeting and the Committee is to consider them, along with the contents of this report, with a recommending approval by the Authority.	

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS	Financial implications will be dependent on the exercise of specific discretions and will be reported to the Authority as and when required.			
EQUALITY RISKS AND BENEFITS ANALYSIS (ERBA)	The contents of this report are considered compatible with existing equalities and human rights legislation.			
APPENDICES	Schedule 1 – Firefighters' Pensions Schemes – Proposed     General Policies			
	B. Schedule 2 – Firefighters' Pensions Schemes – Other Discretions.			
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS	Report DSFRA/15/18 to the meeting of the full Authority held on 29 July 2015.			

#### 1. BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 The full Authority, at its meeting on 29 July 2015, considered a joint report of the Chief Fire Officer and Clerk to the Authority identifying discretions available to the Authority under the various Firefighters Pensions Schemes from 1992 onwards and proposing either a general policy or alternative methodology for discharging those discretions.
- The Authority resolved to defer determination of this matter pending the opportunity for the proposals to be considered and commented on by the Local Pensions Board established, in accordance with the relevant Regulations, by the Authority at its meeting on 20 February 2015 to assist the Authority (as Scheme Manager) in securing compliance with Regulations relating to Firefighters Pensions Schemes and ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Schemes (Minutes DSFRA/46 [20 February 2015 meeting] and DSFRA/20 [29 July 2015 meeting] refer).

#### 2. <u>CONSIDERATION BY LOCAL PENSIONS BOARD</u>

- 2.1 The Local Pensions Board met on 4 September 2015 to consider, amongst other things, the report and recommendations to the Authority in terms of the exercise of discretions under the Firefighters Pensions Schemes.
- These were considered at some length by the Board. The outcome was that, whilst there was consensus in relation to the majority of the proposed general policies to be applied in relation to certain of the discretions, it was felt that some areas could more accurately reflect or convey the spirit of the Regulations. This has resulted in re-wording of some of the proposed general policies and the moving of two issues (relating to the discretion to withhold sums in cases of fraud, theft, negligence etc; and discretion to require forfeiture of award on conviction of certain offences) from the "General Policies" schedule to the "Other Discretions" schedule as it was considered that these were more suited to being exercised on an individual, case-by-case basis rather than being subject to a more restrictive general policy.
- 2.3 Attached to this report, therefore, are two revised Schedules. In both Schedules, the changes proposed by the Local Pensions Board are shown in yellow highlighting.
- 2.4 Schedule 1 indicates those discretions where it is suggested a general policy would be helpful in terms of exercise of the discretion while Schedule 2 identifies those discretions which are either more routine, Scheme administration in nature or where a more individualised, case-by-case approach to discharging the discretion would be more appropriate. As both Schedules deal with several Firefighters Pensions Schemes, similar discretions in each individual Scheme have been grouped together to promote ease of reference and consistency of approach.
- 2.5 In relation to Schedule 2, it is proposed that:
  - those discretions of a more routine, Scheme administration type be exercised by the Chief Fire Officer; and
  - that those individualised, case-by-case discretions which could involve additional financial implications for the Authority should be exercised either by the Chief Fire Officer, the Human Resources Management & Development Committee or the full Authority depending on the quantum of the financial implications and alignment to the thresholds, as set out in the Authority's approved Financial Regulations, for settling employee claims, namely:
    - o for amounts up to £25,000 Chief Fire Officer

- for amounts between £25,000 and £75,000 the Human Resources Management & Development Committee;
- for amounts in excess of £75,000 the full Authority.
- 2.6 It is also intended that, for all cases where the Chief Fire Officer exercises a discretion having a financial implication, these will be reported to the next appropriate meeting of the Human Resources Management & Development Committee for information.

#### 3. FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION SCHEMES PRE-1992

3.1 Prior to 1992, there were a number of other Firefighter Pension Schemes in existence, namely:

The Fire Brigade Pensions Act 1925

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1948

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1952

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1956

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1964

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1966

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1971

The Firemen's Pension Scheme 1973

- 3.2 It is highly unlikely that there remains anyone connected with the Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service who is entitled to benefits under any of the above schemes but, should any individual(s) be so entitled, then it is recommended that:
  - (a) the Fire & Rescue Authority assess and pay any benefits due in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Act/Scheme; and
  - (b) In the event that this involves the exercise of a discretionary power, this will be done in accordance with any similar discretionary powers and policies made under the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 1992 (or successor Schemes) or Compensation Scheme 2006, as set out in the Schedules to this report. If there is no such parallel discretionary provision, it will be considered at an appropriate level as informed by the Authority's approved Scheme of Delegations and Financial Regulations, having regard to the circumstances of the case.

#### 4. CONCLUSION

4.1 Firefighters Pensions Schemes have evolved over the years and there are now several Schemes in existence, each containing a number of discretions. Best endeavours have been taken to identify the discretions in the four most recent Schemes (from 1992 onwards) and to propose an appropriate methodology for exercising these discretions.

4.2 The outcome of this exercise has now been considered by the Local Pensions Board, as recommended by the full Authority at its last meeting. The Board, in turn, has suggested several changes to the initial proposals. These are shown highlighted in the revised Schedules attached. The Committee is invited to consider these with a view to commending them, together with the suggested approach in relation to Schemes pre-1992 as outlined in Section 3 of this report, to the full Authority for approval.

MIKE PEARSON
Director of Corporate Services

#### **APPENDIX A TO REPORT HRMDC/15/7**

## SCHEDULE 1 - FIREFIGHTERS' PENSIONS SCHEMES DISCRETIONS - PROPOSED GENERAL POLICIES

	SCHEME/RULE REF.			NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED BOLICY	
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY	
K4	Part 9, Rule 3	Part 9, Rule 3	-	discretion to the Authority to withdraw the whole or part of any persons personal pension (not that of a spouse or civil partner) during any period to which the person entitled to the pension is employed by any fire and rescue authority in any capacity. Guidance on abatement (i.e. pension reduction) principles in the event of reemployment exists in both the 92 and 06 Schemes, in Firefighters' Pension Scheme Circular 10/2009 and in HM Treasury Guidance aimed at ensuring that a person's income following re-employment plus any pension they are in receipt of should not exceed the level of their final salary prior to initial retirement.	that, in the event of re-employment following retirement, any personal pension payable under either the Firefighters' Pension Schemes 1992 and 2006, or the Firefighters Compensation Scheme Order 2006, be abated in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Schemes/Order, the Firefighters' Pension Scheme Circular 10/2009 and in HM Treasury guidance.	

SCHEDULE 1 – FIREFIGHTERS' PENSIONS SCHEMES – PROPOSED GENERAL POLICIES

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORDINA			DRODOSED BOLICY	
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION			PROPOSED POLICY	
Discretion	s on awa	rds, assoc	iated rev	iew periods and adjustments	r			
D5(3) and D5(9)(c) K1(1) and	Part 9, Rule 1, para 1 Part 9,	Part 4, Rule 3, paragra ph 5(c)	Reg 68	Part 4, Rule 3, para. 5(c) of the Compensation Scheme provide discretion to determine award of a child's allowance for a child aged 18 or over who	acco restr	rdanc	risting policy - determine in e with any Scheme s/conditions as applicable and	
(2) K1(3) K3 (1)	Rule 1, paragra ph 2 and	Part 9, Rule 1, paras 1 and 3		was dependent on a deceased Scheme member by reason of permanent disablement, to review any award so made and to cease payment of the award if the Authority is satisfied that the child is no longer	(i)	pen Sch	nal review before deferred sion age (as specified in each eme); and	
K3 (1)	Rule 2	Part 9 Rule 2			permanently disabled and not entitled to a child's special allowance under any of the other provisions of the Pensions Schemes.	(ii)	Qua	ice obtained by an Independent diffied Medical Practitioner (IQMP) elevant to each individual case
				Rule K1 (1) and (2) of the 92 Scheme require the Authority to have policy on reviewing whether a person under age 60 and in receipt of an ill-health		(a)	nature and level of disablement/injury;	
				of carrying out any duty appropriate to the role from which he/she retired on health grounds and, in the case of a higher tier ill-health pension, whether that person has become capable of undertaking regular employment.  Part 9, Rule 1, para. 1 of the 06 Scheme require the Authority to have a policy for reviewing whether a person under State pensionable age and in receipt of an ill-health pension for less than 10 years has	which he/she retired on health grounds and, in the case of a higher tier ill-health pension, whether that person has become capable of undertaking regular		(b)	appropriate review periods to apply in cases of awards relating to permanent disablement, ill-health or injury;
						(c)	appropriate level(s) of reduction to apply as recommended either at the commencement of award or following a review;	
					become capable of carrying out any duty appropriate to the role from which he/she retired on health grounds, and of undertaking regular employment.	Chies arran	f Fire ( ige foi	or the avoidance of doubt, the Officer be delegated authority to and undertake the necessary tion linked to the above.

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY		
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY		
				Part 9, Rule 1, paras 1 and 3 of the Compensation Scheme require the Authority to have a policy to review, periodically, whether or not a person's degree of disablement that has resulted in the making of an injury award under the Scheme has substantially altered and if so to review the pension payable and discretion to determine, 5 years after an injury pension first becomes payable, that no further review of degree of disablement should take place.	[POLICY AS PER PREVIOUS PAGE]		
				Rule K1(3) of the 92 Scheme requires the Authority to have a policy for reviewing whether a person under age 60 who is receiving early payment of a deferred pension on health grounds, has become capable of firefighting and performing any other duties appropriate to his/her former role as a firefighter.			
				Part 9, Rule 1, paragraph 2 and Rule 2 of the 06 Scheme require the Authority to have a policy for reviewing whether a person under normal benefit age (65) who is in receipt of a deferred pension paid early on permanent disablement, has become capable of carrying out any duty appropriate to their former role, and of undertaking regular employment			

S	SCHEME/RULE REF.			NADDATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
				Reg. 68 of the 15 Scheme requires the Authority to have a a policy for reviewing, the award of ill-health pensions where the recipient is under deferred pension age and has been receiving the award for less than 10 years and for reviewing the early payment of deferred pensions on ill-health grounds for so long as the recipient is below deferred pension age.	[POLICY AS PER PREVIOUS PAGE]
				Rule K3(1) of the 92 Scheme gives the Authority discretion to reduce the level of an ill-health pension to not less than half of the full amount where firefighter contributed to infirmity by own default. The amount of the reduced pension would be increased to the level of a notional deferred pension when the person attains age 60.	
				Part 9, Rule 2 of the Compensation Scheme gives the Authority discretion to reduce an injury award to not less than half of the full amount where a person who is permanently disabled contributed to the infirmity by his/her own default	
Additiona	Pension	Benefits			
B5C	Part 3 Rule 7B,	-	-	discretion to determine that the following be treated as pensionable for credit to the person concerned of Additional Pension Benefit:  (a.) any allowance or supplement to reward additional skills and responsibilities that are applied and maintained outside the requirements of the firefighter member's duties under the contract of employment but	That the general policy be that Additional Pension Benefit (APB) will not be applied to any allowances or emoluments other than that of Continual Professional Development payments (which are the subject of a national collective agreement) UNLESS an individual requests APB in relation to a temporary promotion, in which case the request shall be approved.

S	SCHEME/RULE REF.			NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED FOLICT
				(b.) the difference between the firefighter member's basic pay in their day to day role and any pay received whilst on temporary promotion or where he is temporarily required to undertake the duties of a higher role;	
				(c.) any performance related payment which is not consolidated into his standard pay.	
				Both Schemes restrict this discretion in respect of where the allowance or supplement paid was being treated as pensionable before 1 July 2013 but was not pensionable pay as defined elsewhere in the Schemes, then the allowance or supplement should continue to be treated as pensionable only for so long as the person continues to receive it without any break in pension.	
Payment of	of addition	nal contrib	utions to	count periods of unpaid absence as pensionable s	service
F2(5)	Part 10, Rule 4, para. 3	-	19(c) and 111	Each of the Schemes contains a similar discretion in essence for the Authority to require an employee who has requested to pay contributions to count periods of unpaid absence towards pensionable service to meet both the employee AND employer costs.	That, in all cases where an employee seeks to pay additional pension contributions to cover periods of unpaid absence, in accordance with the relevant Scheme provisions, the employee be required to meet both employee and employer contributions.

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NADDATIVE/DECODIDATION	DDODOGED DOLLOV
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
Discretion	to withho	old pensio	n in case	es of murder/manslaughter of deceased scheme me	ember
D5	Part 4 Rule 7		172	Rule D5 of the 92 Scheme and Rule 7, Part 4 of the 06 Scheme give the Authority discretion to withhold all or part of a child's pension, permanently or temporarily, where the child is convicted of the manslaughter of the deceased Scheme member.	that, in cases of manslaughter, the discretion to withhold a pension either from a surviving partner or eligible child, as provided for by the relevant Scheme, be exercised subject to the conditions of each
				Regulation 172 of the 15 Scheme gives the Authority discretion, to withhold the pension, permanently or temporarily, in the event of the surviving partner or eligible child being convicted of manslaughter.	relevant Scheme, including reinstatement of pension on subsequent quashing of the conviction.
				For each Scheme, however, where the discretion to withhold pension is exercised, the Authority must revoke this decision in the event of the manslaughter conviction subsequently being quashed and pay arrears of pension accrued from the day after that on which the deceased died.	
Discretion	to disallo	ow paymer	nt of defe	erred pension following dismissal	L
	Part 3, Rule 3, para. 4 and			discretion to disallow early payment of a deferred pension (i.e payment of a deferred pension to a wholetime firefighter before age 65, or before age 60 in the case of a special retained firefighter) in	(a) That early payment of a deferred pension be not permitted in cases of dismissal arising from disciplinary action;
	Part 9 Rule 4			cases where the firefighter concerned has been dismissed from the Authority's employment.	(b) That the Human Resources Management & Development
				The reason for "dismissal" is not mentioned and as such it is proposed that the Authority differentiates between dismissal because of a disciplinary offence and dismissal because of medical capability (where the person would not be entitled to an ill-health award).	Committee be delegated authority to determine on a case-by-case basis the early payment of a deferred pension in those cases of dismissal due to medical capability where the person concerned would not be entitled to an ill-health award.

SCHEDULE 1 – FIREFIGHTERS' PENSIONS SCHEMES – PROPOSED GENERAL POLICIES

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDATION	DDODOCED DOLLOY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
Discretion	to claim	medical ap	ppeal boa	ard expenses	
Sch 9, Part 1, Paras 8(2) and 8(2)(A)	Paras 10(2) and 10(3)	Sch 5, Paras 9(2) and 9(3) of	Regs 160, 161 and 165	Paragraphs 8(2) and 8(2)(A) of Part 1 of Schedule 9 to the 92 Scheme, Paragraphs 10(2) and 10(3) of the 06 Scheme and Regulations 160, 161 and 165 of the 15 Scheme each give discretion for the Authority to require a Scheme member who has submitted an appeal to the Medical Appeal Board to meet expenses incurred by Authority on fees and allowances payable to the Board incurred in dealing with the appeal where:	that the Authority require payment in full of any fees an allowances payable to the Medical Appeal Board, as provided for by the relevant Schemes, in cases where the appeal is found by the Board to be frivolous vexatious or manifestly ill-founded or where the appeal is withdrawn, cancelled, postponed or adjourned by the appellant within less than 22 (21) days, as the case
				the Board decides in favour of the Authority and declares that in its opinion the appeal was frivolous, vexatious or manifestly ill-founded; or	may be depending on the Scheme in question.
				• the appellant withdraws the appeal or requests cancellation, postponement or adjournment of the date appointed for an interview or medical examination by the Board less than 22 working days before the appointed date or the appellants acts or omissions cause the Board to cancel, postpone or otherwise adjourn less than 22 working days before the appointed date.	
				Paragraphs 9(2) and 9(3) of Schedule 5 of the Compensation Scheme provide similar discretions in relation to frivolous, vexatious or manifestly ill-founded or where the appellant withdraws the appeal within 21 working days of the date of the interview or medical examination.	

SCHEDULE 1 – FIREFIGHTERS' PENSIONS SCHEMES – PROPOSED GENERAL POLICIES

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NADDATIVE/DESCRIPTION	DDODOSED BOLICY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
		e payment		inistrative expenses incurred	
Rule G6(4) Rule B9(6) Rule B12 and Part 1A	Part 3,Rule 11, para 6(a) Part 3 Rule 12 Chapte r 2, Part 12, Rule 3, para 6		Reg 73	Each of the Schemes provides discretions for the Authority to require payment for certain types of administrative expense incurred. Specifically:  1. Rule G6(4) of the 92 Scheme provides discretion not to accept a firefighter's election to purchase increased benefits through the payment of additional contributions unless the firefighter has undergone a medical examination at his/her own expense and satisfied the Authority as to his/her good health;  2. Rule B9(6) of the 92 Scheme, Part 3,Rule 11, paragraph 6(a) of the 06 Scheme and Regulation 73 of the 15 Scheme provide that, if a member of the Scheme in question wishes to allocate a portion of pension in favour of a beneficiary, that member must satisfy the Authority as to his/her normal life expectancy at the time of the request;  3. Rule B12 and Part 1A of the 92 Scheme and Part 3 Rule 12 of the 06 Scheme require the Authority to provide pension valuations and such information as may be required in relation to divorce or dissolution of civil partnership proceedings and to take appropriate steps to record and administer any Attachment Orders that may be made by a Court. The Authority may determine a charge payable for the administration costs associated with this; and	(a) That, in relation to Rule G6(4) of the 92 Scheme (medical examination prior to permitting election to purchase increased benefits), the Authority policy be to require evidence of good health prior to agreeing any such purchase, with the individual concerned required to meet the costs of any medical examination entailed;  (b) That for Rule B9(6) of the 92 Scheme, Rule 11, Part 3, paragraph 6(a) of the 06 Scheme and Regulation 73 of the 15 Scheme (allocation of portion of pension in favour of a beneficiary), the Authority policy be to require its Occupational Health provider to confirm normal life expectancy at the time of the request and to require from the applicant payment of any charges associated with this;  (c) That, in relation to:  1. Rule B12 and Part 1A of the 92 Scheme and Part 3, Rule 12 of the 06 Scheme (administrative charge for providing pension valuations and administering Attachment Orders etc); and  2. Part 12, Chapter 2, Rule 3, paragraph 6 of 06 Scheme (third request for transfer value statement during a twelve-month period)

S	SCHEME/RULE REF.			NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
				4. Chapter 2, Part 12, Rule 3, paragraph 6 of the 06 Scheme provides that, where, in any period of twelve consecutive months, a Scheme member has made and not withdrawn two applications for a statement of transfer value entitlement, the Authority has discretion not to supply a third or subsequent statement during that twelve-month period unless the applicant pays such fee as the Authority may reasonably require.	the Chief Fire Officer be asked to determine the appropriate charge to apply in each case.
				In relation to (1) and (2) above, there is no detail of how this should be done, e.g. a medical opinion from the firefighters' GP, or the Occupational Health Physician or IQMP, and so the Authority has discretion to determine the method of proof.	
Discretion	on stage	one and s	tage 2 de	ecision makers under firefighters' pension internal	dispute resolution procedure
Rule H3	Part 6, Rule 5	Part 6, Rule 3	Reg 163	Rule H3 of the 92 Scheme, Part 6, Rule 5 of the 06 Scheme and Regulation 163 of the 15 Scheme each require certain pensions disagreements not involving medical issues to be dealt with in accordance with the two-stage Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure. The Authority has discretion under the Schemes, however, to determine who the Stage 1 and Stage 2 decision makers will be.  Part 6, Rule 3 of the Compensation Scheme requires the Authority to reconsider, at person's request, his/her claim to an award where the Authority does not admit the claim at all, or does not	That the existing policy be confirmed i.e. that Stage 1 Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure decisions be taken by the Director of People and Commercial Services with Stage 2 decisions taken by a small Member Panel appointed annually by the Human Resources Management & Development Committee.
				admit it to its full extent.	

S	SCHEME/RULE REF.			NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
				The "reconsideration" is under the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure and again the Authority has discretion to determine who the Stage 1 and Stage 2 decision makers will be. If the person's grievance lies in the content of the medical opinion upon which the Authority based their decision, the person should use the process set out in Part 6 Rule 2 "Appeal to Medical Appeal Board" of the Order.	
				Existing policy is that Stage 1 decisions are undertaken by the Director of People and Commercial Services; with Stage 2 determinations being considered by a small Panel of Members appointed annually by the Human Resources Management & Development Committee.	
Extension	s of time	for medica	l appeals	3	
H2(4)(c) Sch 9, Part 1, para 1(2)	Part 8, Rule 4, para 4	Sch 5, para 1(2)	155	The 92, 06 and 15 Schemes each provide a period of 28 days for an individual to lodge an appeal against a decision based on a medical opinion. The Schemes also provide discretion for fire and rescue authorities to extend this 28 day period for up to a further six months from the date of issue of those documents prompting the appeal. The 92 Scheme also requires the Authority to be satisfied, prior to granting any extension, that the failure to meet the 28 day deadline was not due to the individual's own default.  The Compensation Scheme contains similar provisions on extension (by up to six months) but only allows an initial 14 days in which to submit the medical appeal.	that the Chief Fire Officer be delegated authority to grant an extension of up to six months to the time limit by which an individual is required to lodge an appeal against a decision based on a medical opinion, subject to compliance with any other Scheme requirements in relation to this discretion and particularly to the individual establishing that the failure to meet the deadline was not due to their own default.

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NADDATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED BOLICY
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY
				As with the 92 Scheme, the Authority needs to be satisfied, prior to granting any extension, that the failure to meet the 14 day deadline was not due to the individual's own default.	
Adjustme	nt of Tran	sfer Value	s		
Rule F6A(6)	Part 12, Ch 5, Rule 14, para 6			discretion in certain circumstances (i.e. under the "mis-selling transfer rules) to adjust the amount of any transfer value accepted by the Authority to ensure that there is no duplication of pensionable service credited.	That any transfer values accepted by adjusted as necessary to avoid duplication of pensionable service credited.
Discretion	on dedu	ctions for o	outstand	ing contributions	
Sch 6, Part 1, para 1(4)	Part 11, Rule 4, paras 6 and 7			Schedule 6, Part 1, paragraph 1(4) of the 92 Scheme provides the Authority with discretion to deduct from a pension award any outstanding balance of payments in respect of previous service.  Similarly, Part 11, Rule 4, paragraphs 6 and 7 of the 06 Scheme give the Authority discretion to deduct contributions for unpaid additional maternity, paternity or adoption leave from any death grant payable where the member concerned dies without giving notice within the election period that they wish to pay such contributions.	That, in accordance with the Schemes in question, any outstanding pension contributions be recovered either from any award made under the 92 Scheme, prior to its payment, or from any death grant payable under the 06 Scheme.

	SCHEME/R	ULE REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDATION	PROPOSED BOLICY	
92	06	COMP.	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY	
Overpay	ment on de	eath of pen	sioner			
	Part 14, Rule 3, para 5			discretion to recover all or part of any overpayment arising from the Authority not being informed of the death of a pensioner. The overpayment may be recovered by making an off-set against any other awards payable under the 06 Scheme in respect of the deceased.	that in the event of an overpayment arising from the Authority not being informed of the death of a pensioner, recovery the full amount of any such overpayment, using the most appropriate method including off-set against any other awards payable under the 06 Scheme in respect of the deceased, will be required.	
Repayme	ent of Aggr	egate Pen	sion Con	tributions		
L3(9)	Part 14, Rule 3, para 6			If a person is entitled to the repayment of aggregate pension contributions, the Authority is not obliged to make the payment until the expiration of a year from the date of retirement if the person does not make an earlier request for payment.	that, where a person is entitled under Part 3, Rule 8 of the Scheme to the repayment of aggregate pension contributions but does not make an earlier request for this repayment, the repayment will only be made following the expiry of one year from the date of retirement.	
Requirer	nent for pro	oof of iden	tity and	continuing entitlement to award		
	Part 15, Rule 3		Reg 184	discretion to require a person who is, or may be, entitled to a pension or a lump to provide the Authority with supporting evidence as to identity and continuing entitlement to any payment under the Scheme. The Authority also has discretion to withhold the whole or part of any amount due where a person fails to comply with this requirement.	That, should the individual circumstances dictate, a person in receipt of, or potentially entitled to, either a pension or lump sum under either the 06 or 15 Schemes be required to provide evidence as to identity and continuing entitlement to any such award, with the whole of any amount due being withheld where the person fails to comply with this request.	

S	CHEME/R	ULE REF.		NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION	PROPOSED POLICY						
92	06	COMP.	15		PROPOSED FOLICT						
Suspensi	Suspension/recovery of award for false declaration or suppression of material fact										
			Reg 101	discretion to suspend and recover a pension awarded and paid under the Scheme to a surviving partner and/or eligible child when, after making the award and payment, it later appears to the Authority that the member or person to whom the pension has been paid made a false declaration or deliberately suppressed a material fact in connection with the award.	that, in the event of an award made to a surviving partner and/or eligible child under the 15 Scheme where it later appears to the Authority that the member or person to whom the pension has been paid made a false declaration or deliberately suppressed a material fact in connection with the award, then the Authority will exercise its discretion under Regulation 101 to cease payment and recover all amounts paid under the pension.						
Acceptanc	e of Transf	er Values									
F6A(3) (b) F7(1) (subject to Rule F7(2) and (3)	Part 12, Ch. 3 Rule 9(1)(c) (ii) Rule 10, para 1 subject to paras 3 and 4 and Part 10, Rule 2 paras 2 and 3 Part 12, Chs. 4 and 5, Rules 14 paras 3 of each Ch.		141	Each of the Schemes gives the Authority discretion on acceptance of transfer values relating to non-occupational pensions. The Schemes also provide various conditions relating to extensions of time limits for individuals to apply to have a transfer value accepted.	That, given that acceptance of a transfer value would ultimately result in increased costs for the Authority upon retirement of the individual concerned, the policy of the Authority be not to accept transfer values and accordingly not to exercise any of the associated discretions relating to extensions of time limits to request transfer values etc.						

#### APPENDIX B TO REPORT HRMDC/15/7

SCHEM	E/RULE F	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDION
92	06	COMP	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
Rule B7(5A)	-	-	-	Discretion to consent to one quarter pension being commuted in the case of a firefighter who, upon retirement, would otherwise not be permitted to commute such portion of pension as would provide a greater lump sum than two and a quarter times the full amount of pension.
				Before exercising this discretion, the Authority must have regard to the economical, effective and efficient management of its functions and the costs to the Authority likely to be incurred in any particular case.
				These costs will include a sum equal to the difference between the lump sum which the Scheme member wishes to receive and the lump sum payable in the absence of the Authority's consent; such a sum would be transferrable to the Firefighters Pension Fund by the Authority in accordance with Rule LA2(10) of the Firemen's Pension Scheme Order 1992. There may also be tax charges to be paid by both the firefighter and the Authority which arise from permitting the greater lump sum to be paid.
Rules	Part 3,	Part 2,	167	Discretion to commute small pensions/awards for "trivial" lump sum
B8, E5, E6, IA(2) (1)	Rule 10 Part 4, Rules 5 and 12 Part 6 Rule 2	Rule 4 Part 5, Rules 3 and 4		Each of the Schemes contains provision to commute, in certain circumstances as indicated in the Scheme and subject to advice from the Scheme Actuary, a small pension award for a trivial lump sum.
Rule B9(2) (b)	Part 3, Rule 11 paras 2(b) and 3	-	72	A Scheme member may allocate a portion of pension for a dependant other than a spouse or civil partner.  Before giving consent to the allocation, the Authority must be satisfied that the nominee is a person "substantially dependent" on the member. There is no guidance in the Scheme Rules as determining substantial dependency and it is proposed that this should be at the discretion of the Chief Fire Officer to

SCHEM	E/RULE	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDION
92	06	COMP	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
				determine on a case by case basis.
Rule C8(6)	-	Part 3, Rule 4, Paras 6 and 7	-	Discretion to increase level of spouse's or civil partner's pension/award for such period as the Authority thinks fit where the firefighter and spouse or civil partner were living separately at the date of death and where the normal level of benefit is reduced under the Scheme in question
Rule C8(7)	-	-	-	Discretion to allow a gratuity to be paid, in whole or in part, to the surviving spouse or civil partner where it would otherwise not be payable because husband and wife, or civil partners, were living separately at the date of death.
C9	-	Part 3, Rule 5, paras 1 and 2	-	Discretion to reinstate all or part of a spouse's or civil partner's pension/award or gratuity for such period as the Authority thinks fit if - following termination of the pension or gratuity on marriage, remarriage, formation of a civil partnership or subsequent civil partnership – the subsequent marriage, remarriage or civil partnership is dissolved OR the other party to the subsequent marriage or civil partnership dies.
				The Authority would have to decide what confirmatory evidence should be provided by the applicant, whether to allow the full award to be reinstated and the date from which reinstatement payment should be made.
E3	-	-	-	Discretion to make an award of dependent relative's gratuity to a dependent relative who is not entitled to any other award under the Firemen's Pension Scheme Order 1992 in respect of the same firefighter.
E9(6)	-	-	-	Decision to substitute a higher amount of child's flat rate award where neither of the child's parents is alive.
				In the exceptional circumstances that this issue should come up for consideration, the Authority has discretion to make such an award.
F4(3)	-	-	-	Extension of 6-month time limit for election to pay certain sums in order that earlier pensionable service may count on rejoining the Fire & Rescue service.
				The Authority has discretion to permit the extension of the 6-month time limit for an election to pay certain sums in order that earlier pensionable service may count upon a firefighter rejoining the Fire & Rescue service.

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.						
92	06	СОМР	15					
F5(1)	-	-	-	Discretion to extend period in which a firefighter may make a payment to count as pensionable service a period during which an injury award was payable.				
				If a firefighter is entitled under Rule F5 to pay to the Authority the amount required in accordance with Schedule 6, Part I, paragraph 1 of the Firemen's Pension Scheme Order 1992 in respect of a period during which the firefighter was entitled to receive an injury pension, in order that it may count as pensionable service on reemployment, the Authority has discretion to extend the period in which the election to pay and payment must be made (within six months of resuming service).				
F9(2)	-	-	-	Extension of 6 month time limit for a former firefighter, or serving firefighter who has opted out of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 1992, to request payment of a transfer value to another pension scheme.				
				If a former firefighter or a serving firefighter who has opted out of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 1992 becomes subject to another pension scheme and requests that the Fire & Rescue Authority should pay a transfer value to that other scheme, the written request must be made within 6 months of becoming subject to the other scheme. However, the Authority has discretion to extend this time limit.				
F9(5)	-	-	-	Extension of 12-month time limit after leaving in which a former firefighter must be subject to a new scheme if a transfer value based upon a returned refund of pension contributions or gratuity is to be permitted.				
				If a former firefighter has received a refund of pension contributions or a gratuity under Part B of the Firemen's Pension Scheme Order 1992 and wishes to return the contributions/gratuity to reinstate pensionable service for the purposes of a transfer value to a new scheme, he/she must have become subject to that scheme within 12 months of ceasing to serve as a regular firefighter. The Authority has discretion to extend this 12-month time limit.				
G2(2)	Part	-	114	Discretion to deduct pension contributions from instalments of pensionable pay.				
	11, Rule 3, Para 6			The Authority's pensions provider will normally administer all Scheme aspects, including collection of pension contributions and payment of pension in instalments.				
	Para 6							Contributions are normally deducted from instalments of pay but the Authority has discretion to collect the contributions due by other means should the need arise (for example, an individual may wish to pay by way of a lump sum an amount equating to payment of additional contributions to enable periods of unpaid leave to count towards pensionable service).

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDATION					
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION					
G2A(3)	Part 11, Rule 4, Para 3	-	-	Discretion to extend 30-day time limit in which an election to pay contributions in respect of unpaid additional maternity, paternity or adoption leave must be made.					
G7(3)	-	-	-	Discretion to agree to discontinuance of payment of periodical contributions for increased benefits where the payment is causing, or likely to cause, the firefighter financial hardship.					
K5(1)	Part 9 Rule 5,	-	171	Discretion to withdraw a pension in whole or in part, permanently or temporarily, on a person's conviction of certain offences.					
									The Authority has discretion to withdraw a pensioner's pension under the Scheme (or any pension payable under the Scheme to a spouse or civil partner where the offence is committed <u>after</u> the death of the pensioner) in whole or in part where the pensioner has been convicted of:
				the offence of treason; or					
				<ul> <li>one or more offences under the Official Secrets Act where the person has received either a single or consecutive sentences of at least 10 years; or</li> </ul>					
					<ul> <li>an offence committed in connection with the member's scheme employment and which is certified by the Secretary of State as being gravely injurious to the interests of the State or likely to lead to serious loss of confidence in the public service.</li> </ul>				
Rule K5(5)	Part 9 Rule 5, Para 4	-	-	Discretion to restore, at any time and to such extent as the Authority think fit, a pension withdrawn under either Rules K5(1) of the 92 Scheme or Part 9, Rule 5 paras 1 – 3 of the 06 Scheme to the pensioner or to apply it for the benefit of any dependant of the pensioner.					
L3(1)	Part	Part	-	Determination of intervals at which instalments of pension, allowance or award shall be paid.					
	14, Rule 3 para 2(b)	10, Rule 2, Para. 1		In practice, this is a Scheme administration-type matter and would in the main be undertaken by the Authority's pensions provider (currently Peninsula Pensions), with payments made monthly in arrears for pensions (but in advance for injury awards under the Compensation Scheme).					
	2(0)			The Fire & Rescue Authority has discretion, however, to determine the intervals at which instalments of pension or allowance should be paid.					

SCHEM	E/RULE F	REF.		NADD ATIVE/DECORIDION						
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION						
Rule L3(1)	Part 14, Rule 3 para 2(a)	Part 10, Rule 2, Para. 1	-	Discretion to delay payment of an award to the extent necessary for determining any question as to the Fire & Rescue Authority's liability.						
Rule L3(7) and (8)	-	-	-	Discretion to decide an earlier payment date for survivors' benefits than the date prescribed (the first anniversary of the date of death) where the deceased received a gratuity or lump sum, and an option to pay a gratuity in instalments rather than as a single lump sum.						
L5(1)	Part	-	Reg.	Payment of awards – minors.						
	14, Rule 5 para 1		100	The Authority may, at its discretion and as it thinks fit, pay a minor's pension to such other person as it may determine. The Authority may give directions to that person as to the application of the pension for the minor's benefits.						
Rule L5(2)	Part 14,	-	Reg. 168	Payment of awards – discretion as to recipient, or application, of payments due to a person incapable of managing his/her own affairs.						
	Rule 5, Para 2.			If it appears to the Authority that a person entitled to the payment of an award is, by reason of mental disorder or otherwise, incapable of managing his/her affairs, the Authority may use their discretion to						
										(a) pay the benefits or any part of them to a person having care of the person entitled, or such other person as the Authority may determine, or
				(b) apply the benefits in such manner as the Authority may determine for the benefit of the person entitled, or his/her dependants.						
Rule L5(3)		-	Reg. 169	Payment of awards – discretion, following death of a person, as to recipient(s) of sums less than amount specified in the Administration of Estates (Small Payments) Act 1965.						
			·	Rule 6,		Upon the death of a person to whom there was due an award not exceeding (currently) £5,000, then the Authority may pay the sum due to the person or persons as the Authority thinks fit without requiring Grant of Probate or any other proof of entitlement.				

SCHEM	E/RULE F	REF.		NARD ATIVE/DESCRIPTION								
92	06	COMP	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION								
Rule L5(6)	Part 14 Rule 6,		174 and	Discretion to withhold sums in cases of fraud, theft, negligence, other offence or dismissal (for disciplinary offence)								
to (9)	Paras 4 to 7		<mark>175</mark>	Rule L5(6) to (9) of the 92 Scheme and Rule 6, Paragraphs 4 to 7 of Part 14 of the 06 Scheme give discretion to withhold all or part of any sums becoming due to a Scheme member in respect of a pension in cases where there has been a loss of funds to the Authority as a result of fraud, theft or negligence on the part of the Scheme member, subject to certain conditions including the total amount withheld not exceeding the amount of loss.								
				Regulation 174 of the 15 Scheme gives discretion to withhold benefits payable under the Scheme to a person, to such extent and for such duration as is considered appropriate, where the person concerned has a relevant monetary obligation or has caused a relevant monetary loss to the Authority. "Relevant monetary obligation" and "relevant monetary loss" are defined in the Regulation and both must feature a criminal, negligent or fraudulent act on the part of the Scheme member concerned.								
												Similarly, Regulation 175 of the 15 Scheme gives discretion to off-set a monetary obligation against the member's entitlement to benefits under the Scheme. In this instance, however, in addition to the member's criminal, negligent or fraudulent act or omission giving rise to the monetary obligation, there is also a monetary obligation arising from a payment made in error by the Authority to the Scheme member.
											There are limits to these discretion, e.g. the amount withheld may only be that which exceeds the person's guaranteed minimum pension and the Authority may only act if there is no dispute about the amount or, if there is, there is a court order or the award of an arbitrator.	
Sch. 9, Part 1, para. 4(5)	Annex 2, para. 6(5)	Sch. 5, Para. 5(5)	Reg. 157	Discretion to decide the Fire & Rescue Authority's representation at a Medical Appeal Board interview.								
Sch. 9, Part 1, para. 5	Annex 2, para. 7(1)	Sch. 5, Para. 6(1)	Reg. 157	Discretion to decide whether or not to submit written evidence or a written statement to a Medical Appeal Board.								
-	Part 2, Rule 1(6) to (9)	Part 2, Rule 3, para. 10	Reg. 76	Discretion, subject to other Scheme qualifications as appropriate, to accept the status of "nominated partner" or "surviving partner" where the Scheme member and partner had been in a relationship for less than 2 years.								

SCHEME	RULE F	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDION
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
	Part 3, Rule 5	-	-	Pension on member-initiated early retirement.  If a firefighter member, other than a special firefighter member, satisfies an eligibility condition, is awarded a deferred pension, and at age 55 or over but before normal benefit age (65) requests early payment by giving written notice to the Fire & Rescue Authority, the Authority has discretion to refuse the request if the pension as reduced by the appropriate amount of actuarial reduction is likely to be less than the guaranteed minimum pension that would be payable from State pensionable age.
	Part 3, Rule 6	-	Reg. 62	Authority-initiated early retirement.  The Fire & Rescue Authority, having regard to the economical, effective and efficient management of their functions and the costs likely to be incurred in a particular case, can determine that a firefighter (other than a special firefighter member for the 06 Scheme) who is at least age 55 but under normal pension age (60):  • 06 Scheme - should be retired from the Authority's employment with immediate payment of a pension calculated on the same principles as an ordinary pension under Part 3, Rule 1 of the Firefighter's Pension Scheme (England) Order 2006.  If the Authority is considering making a determination under the comparable provision in the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2015, it must also consider making a determination under this provision.  • 15 Scheme - and who is dismissed from scheme employment by reason of business efficiency or whose employment is terminated by mutual consent on the grounds of business efficiency, should receive immediate payment of retirement pension without the early retirement reduction. In accordance with Regulation 120 of the 15 Scheme, if the Authority uses this discretion to make an early payment of retirement pension, it will have responsibility for payment of an employer initiated retirement additional contribution calculated in accordance with Regulation 120(2). This would be paid into the Firefighters' Pension Fund as required by Regulation 123.  If the Authority is considering making an award under Regulation 62 for a connected member of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006, it must also consider employer initiated retirement under Part 3, Rule 6 of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme (England) Order 2006.

SCHEM	SCHEME/RULE REF.									
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION						
-	Part 5,	-	-	Discretion as to recipient of death grant and post-retirement death grant.						
	Rules 1 and 2			Upon the death of a firefighter member or pensioner member, the Fire & Rescue Authority may pay a death grant assessed in accordance with Part 5, Rules 1 and 2 of the 06 Scheme to such person or persons as the Authority think fit, in accordance with Part 5, Rule 1, paragraph 10 of the Order.						
-	Part 5, Rule 1,	-	-	Discretion to pay part of any death grant not paid in full, to a person whose conviction for murder or manslaughter of the deceased has been quashed.						
	para. 12			If a person's conviction for murder or manslaughter is quashed on appeal the Authority may, if the death grant has not at that time been paid in full and having regard to the circumstances of the case, pay part of it to the person whose conviction has been quashed.						
-	Part 6, Rule 5,	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	Discretion to pay a post-retirement death grant in respect of a pension credit member to such person or persons as the Fire & Rescue Authority think fit.
	para. 2			If a pension credit member dies within five years of their entitlement to a pension credit pension coming into payment and before their 75 <sup>th</sup> birthday and there is a difference between						
				the amount that is five times the pension, calculated at the annual rate effective on the day that it came into payment, and						
				the instalments of pension that have been paid						
				the Authority can pay a post-retirement death grant of the amount of the difference to such person or persons as the Authority think fit.						
-	Part 9	Rule 5,	-	Forfeiture of award on conviction of certain offence						
	Rule 6,	Part 9		These rules provide discretion to require such amount of pension as is considered appropriate where a person is convicted of an offence under Section 34(6) of the Fire & Rescue Services Act (i.e. whereby the person, either by their act or omission, injures themselves deliberately for the purpose of obtaining, either for themselves or another, a pension or injury award).						
-	Part 11, Rule 5, para. 5	-	-	Discretion to allow a part-time regular firefighter to pay contributions at a part-time rate to purchase additional service.						

SCHEM	SCHEME/RULE REF.			NARRATIVE/RECORDETION
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
-	Part 11, Rule 5, para. 6	-	-	Discretion to allow a retained or volunteer firefighter to purchase additional service by periodical contributions based on the firefighters reference pay.
-	Part 11, Rule 5A	-	-	Purchase of service during the limited period.  Discretions for estimation of service for duration of special retained firefighter exercise only.
-	Part 11, Rule 8	-	-	Discretion to agree to a firefighter member's request to discontinue payment of additional contributions to purchase service provided this is solely on the grounds of the member's financial circumstances, and decision as regards timing of recommencement of payment of additional contributions to purchase service where agreed with member that discontinuance should be no greater than 6 months.
-	Part 11, Rule 9, para. 4(c)	-	-	The payment of contributions in respect of periods of unpaid service or absence, and discretion to extend the time limit in which the firefighter must pay.  If a firefighter member who elected to pay additional contributions to "purchase" additional service has a period of unpaid service or unpaid leave (i.e. maternity, paternity, adoption leave or other absence without pay) and consequently there is no pay from which the additional contributions can be deducted, he/she can apply to the Fire & Rescue Authority to pay the contributions. The application must be made no later than one month after the end of the period of unpaid absence.  The additional contributions may be paid directly to the Authority during the unpaid leave, or collected within 6 months of the firefighter's return to duty after the absence. The Authority has discretion to extend this time limit.
-	Part 15, Rule 4	-	-	Decision as to date of issue of annual benefit statements and relevant date for the pension illustration.  The Fire & Rescue Authority can determine the timing of the issue of annual benefit statements. The Authority may also decide the relevant date for the pension illustration (except in the case of pension credit members).  In practice, this is a Scheme administration matter dealt with by the Authority's pensions provider (currently Peninsula Pensions).

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.		NADD ATIME/DECORIDEION
92	06	СОМР	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
-	-	-	Reg. 5	Delegation.
				In accordance with Regulation 5(2), the Fire & Rescue Authority may delegate any of their functions including the power to delegate.
-	-	-	Reg.	Opting into the Scheme. Discretion to vary date at which pensionable service commences.
			12(5)	The Fire & Rescue Authority has discretion to determine the date at which a person's pensionable service will commence if the person opts into the Scheme and the Authority considers that beginning of the first pay period after the option is exercised would be inappropriate.
-	-	-	Reg.	Opting out of the Scheme. Discretion to determine date at which pensionable service ceases.
			16(2) (b)	The Fire & Rescue Authority has discretion to determine the date at which a person's pensionable service will cease if the person opts out of the Scheme and the Authority consider that the first day of the first pay period beginning on or after the date on which the option is exercised would be inappropriate.
-	-	-	Reg. 28(2)	Establishment of pension accounts: general. Discretion to keep in such form as the Fire & Rescue Authority consider appropriate.
				The Fire & Rescue Authority must establish and maintain pension accounts for members in accordance with the Regulations but may be kept in the form it considers appropriate.
				In practice, this is a Scheme administration matter dealt with by the Authority's pensions provider (currently Peninsula Pensions).
-	-	-	Reg. 37	Closure and re-establishment of active member's account. Fire & Rescue Authority's discretion to select appropriate account where more than one account held.
				In accordance with Regulation 37(3) and (4), if a member has more than two active member's accounts with the Authority and ceases pensionable service with less than three months' qualifying service in respect of one account, the Authority shall close that account and aggregate benefits with one of the others; the member may select which one. In accordance with Regulation 37(5), if the member fails to make a choice, the Authority may make a decision on the member's behalf, selecting whichever appears to be the most appropriate account in the circumstances.

SCHEM	/IE/RULE	REF.		NADDATIVE (DECORIDE ON
92	06	COMP	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
				In practice, this is a Scheme administration matter dealt with by the Authority's pensions provider (currently Peninsula Pensions).
-	-	-	Reg. 49	Closure of deferred member's account after gap in pensionable service not exceeding 5 years.  Discretion to select which account is to be closed where more than one account is held.
				If a deferred member re-enters pensionable service under the Scheme after a gap in pensionable service not exceeding 5 years, the Fire & Rescue Authority shall close the deferred member's account and re-establish the person's active member's account with the appropriate entries in accordance with Regulation 49.
				If the person had more than one relevant deferred member's account, he/she must select – within three months of re-entering Scheme employment - which one should close. If the person fails to make a selection, the Fire & Rescue Authority may make the choice for them in accordance with Regulation 49(4).
				In practice, this is a Scheme administration matter dealt with by the Authority's pensions provider (currently Peninsula Pensions).
-	-	-	Reg.	Exercise of partial retirement option - Discretion as to form in which notice must be given.
			63	Agreement of the Fire & Authority with member concerned as to date on which the partial retirement option in accordance with Regulation 63 is to be exercised. Regulation 63 allows a member aged at least 55 and who would be entitled, if s/he left, to immediate payment of a retirement pension in relation to a continuous period of pensionable service to opt to continue in pensionable service under the Scheme and claim the whole of the pension accrued prior to exercise of the option. The member concerned must give prior notice to the Authority of the wish to exercise this option.
				In practice, this is a Scheme administration matter dealt with by the Authority's pensions provider (currently Peninsula Pensions).
-	-	-	Reg.	Commencement of pensions. Discretion to determine date of commencement of payments.
			70	In accordance with Regulation 70(1) and (2), where an active member has not claimed payment of the retirement pension before the date on which they retire, the Fire & Rescue Authority shall, determine the date on which payment will commence and will notify the member accordingly.

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECODIDEION
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
				In accordance with Regulation 70(8), if a member requests deferral of payment of a deferred pension beyond deferred pension age (Regulation 70(5)(a)), or requests early payment with an early payment reduction before deferred pension age (Regulation 70(5)(b)), the Authority shall decide the payment date after the claim for payment has been made.
-	-	-	Reg. 75	Adjustment of allocated benefit. Discretion to adjust allocated benefit if member dies after reaching age 75.
				If a member who has made an allocation election dies after reaching age 75, and the amount of allocated pension does not qualify as a dependant's scheme pension under section 167 of the Finance Act 2004 (pension death benefit rules), the Fire & Rescue Authority has discretion to adjust it in such manner as they may determine.
-	-	-	Reg. 95	Person to whom lump sum death benefit payable. Discretion of Fire & Rescue Authority to select recipients.
				Regulation 95 gives the Fire & Rescue Authority absolute discretion to pay any lump sum death benefit to or for the benefit of the member's nominee, personal representative or any person appearing to have been a relative or dependent of the member.
-	-	-	Reg.	Provisional awards of eligible child's pensions: Discretion for later adjustments.
			102	If the Fire & Rescue Authority has paid children's pensions under the Scheme to certain persons on the basis that they were eligible children at the date of the member's death and there were no others, and subsequently it appears that any of those children were not eligible, or there was a further eligible child to whom no payment has been made, or that a child born after the member's death is an eligible child, the Authority has discretion to adjust the amount of pensions as required in view of the facts as they subsequently appear. The adjustments may be made retrospectively.

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECORIDION
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
-	-	-	Reg. 104	Discretion to adjust benefits to comply with Finance Act 2004 where members die over age 75.  If a member dies after reaching age 75 and any part of a pension to which a person becomes entitled on the death would not qualify as a dependant's scheme pension for the purposes of section 167 of the Finance Act 2004 (the pension death benefit rules), the Fire & Rescue Authority has discretion to adjust the benefit payable to the person so that it would qualify as a dependant's scheme pension in accordance with that section of the Act.
-	-	-	Reg. 110	Member contributions. Discretion to specify circumstances where a reduction in pensionable pay shall be disregarded for purposes of determining member contributions.  Regulation 110(7)(h) give the Authority discretion to specify the circumstances in a particular case where a reduction in pensionable pay will be disregarded.
-	-	-	Reg. 135	Statement of transfer value entitlement. Discretion to extend period in which guarantee date falls.  In accordance with Regulation 135 (statement of entitlement) of the Regulations 2014, the Authority must specify in a statement of entitlement the "guarantee date" date by reference to which the cash equivalent or club transfer value is calculated; this date must fall within the three months beginning with the date of the member's application for the statement of entitlement and within ten days ending with the date on which the member is provided with the statement.  The Authority also has discretion to extend this date to within six months of the date of the member's application if, for reasons beyond the Authority's control, the information needed to calculate the transfer value cannot be obtained before the end of the three month period.
-	-	-	Regs 142 and 144	Transfer statement and club transfer value statement. Discretion to require member to request manager of other pension scheme to provide statement of transfer value.  In accordance with Regulations 142(2) and 144(2) the Authority may require that, before making a transfer payment request, the member must ask the scheme manager of the other scheme to provide a statement of the amount of transferred pension that the person would be entitled to count if the transfer were to proceed.

SCHEN	/IE/RULE	REF.		NADDATIVE (DECORIDE ON
92	06	СОМР	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
-	-	-	Reg. 165	Recovery of overpayment of benefits. Discretion to decide means of recovery of overpayment resulting from a percentage decrease in earnings in a revaluation order.
				In accordance with Regulation 165 of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme (England) Regulations 2014 if, in a financial year, a percentage decrease in earnings is specified in an order made under section 9 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 ("revaluation"), the Authority must recover any overpayment of benefits that has occurred as a result of the application of the retirement index adjustment for that year. The Authority can determine, however, the method of recovery e.g. by reducing the amount of each instalment of pension until recovery is completed, or omitting to pay any increase in the amount of any pension due until the amount of overpayment is recovered.
-	-	-	Reg. 173	Forfeiture of lump sum death benefit: offences committed by other persons: discretion to restore any benefit withheld
				If a person is convicted of a relevant offence (i.e. the murder, manslaughter or any other office of unlawful killing of a Scheme member), the Fire & Rescue Authority must withhold all of any lump sum death benefit payable to that person. If the conviction is subsequently quashed on appeal, however, the Authority has discretion, on appeal by the person and to such extent and to such duration as it thinks fit, restore to the person the amount of benefit withheld. Any such restoration is, however, cancelled in the event of the person subsequently being convicted of a relevant offence.
-	-	-	Reg. 178	Payment by the Fire & Rescue Authority, on behalf of a Scheme member, of a "lifetime allowance" charge
				The Authority may, at the request of a Scheme member, pay on behalf of the member any amount payable by way of a "lifetime allowance" charge under Section 214 of the Finance Act 2004, subject to the member either:
				(a) paying to the Authority the amount in question prior to the "lifetime allowance" charge becoming payable; or
				(b) authorising the Authority to deduct the amount from a lump sum becoming payable to the Member under the Scheme at the time the "lifetime allowance" charge becomes payable.
-	-	-	Sch. 1	Payments for Added Pension
				In accordance with this Schedule, the Authority has discretion to:

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.		NARDATIVE/DECORIDEION
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
				<ul> <li>cancel, upon written notice, any election by a Scheme member to pay periodical payments for added pension where it appears to the Authority that the overall limit for extra pension will be exceeded if the member continues to make periodical payments (paragraph 4(2);</li> </ul>
				<ul> <li>determine the minimum periodical payment for added pension (paragraph 7(3);</li> </ul>
				<ul> <li>agree with Scheme member method of payment for additional pension other than periodical payments deducted from pensionable pay; and</li> </ul>
				<ul> <li>extend the period of notice (6 months from the end of any period of assumed pensionable pay or period of reduced pay) for a Scheme member to authorise deduction of aggregated payments which would have been made during any period of assumed pensionable pay or period of reduced pay.</li> </ul>
-	-	-	Sch 2: Part 1, Para. 3(3).	Discretion to determine tapered protection date in some cases.  In accordance with Paragraph 3(3), the Authority can use its discretion to determine a tapered protection closing date for a tapered protection member of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006 to whom Paragraphs 9(5) or 21 apply (members returning to pensionable service) according to the circumstances of the case.
-	_	Part 1,	_	Determining pensionable pay in certain cases (retained firefighters).
		Rule 11, paras. (5) and (6):		Where the Authority is unable to determine the period of a person's service from their records and do not hold records of that person's pay for any period and the necessary documents cannot be obtained from the person, the Authority may estimate the person's pensionable pay from records it holds and may in particular estimate this on the basis of the average of recent pay data for retained firefighters at the same station or stations as that at which the person was based for the relevant period.
-	-	Part 2, Rule 3, para. 6	-	Discretion to reduce compensation for death or permanent incapacity while on duty if the firefighter's serious and culpable negligence or misconduct contributed to the circumstances in which the injury was sustained.
				The Authority has discretion to reduce the amount or sum referred to in paragraph 2 or 4 of Rule 3 by such amount as it considers appropriate where the firefighter's serious and culpable negligence or misconduct contributed in any material respect to the circumstances in which the injury was sustained, if it is felt appropriate according to the circumstances of any case which falls within the terms of Part 2, Rule 3.

SCHEM	E/RULE I	REF.		NADDATIVE/DESCRIPTION				
92	06	СОМР	15	NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION				
-	-	Part 3, Rule 2, paras.	-	Discretion to pay augmented award to spouse or civil partner where specific conditions of eligibility are not met.				
		2 (b) and (c):		Where a person who is or has been a firefighter dies from the effects of a qualifying injury or infirmity of mind or body occasioned by a qualifying injury where the injury was received in the execution of duties performed in circumstances where there was an intrinsic likelihood of the firefighter receiving a fatal injury, for the immediate purpose of saving the life of another person or of preventing loss of human life, an augmented award would be paid to the surviving spouse or civil partner.				
				According to the circumstances of an individual case, if the Authority is of the opinion that the above conditions may have been satisfied and that this Rule should apply, or that it would be inequitable if this Rule were not to apply, it can consider paying an augmented award.				
-	-	Part 5, Rule 1	-	Discretion to award an adult dependent relative's special pension for such period(s) as the Fire & Rescue Authority may determine.				
				Discretion for the Authority to consider, according to the circumstances of an individual case, the payment of a dependent relative's special pension to an adult dependent relative not entitled to any other award in respect of the same firefighter. It would be calculated in accordance with Schedule 4, Part 1 of the Order.				
-	-	Part 5,	-	Discretion to award a dependent relative's gratuity.				
		Rule 2, para. 3		The Authority has discretion to pay a dependent relative's gratuity to a dependent relative not entitled to any other award in respect of the same firefighter according to the circumstances of an individual case. The gratuity or gratuities payable must not exceed the amount of the deceased's contributions.				
-	-	Part 7, Rule 2 and Rule 4			,		-	Discretion to increase an award for a serviceman who, at the end of his/her forces period, is permanently disabled by a qualifying injury or injury received during his/her forces period.
				Should a serviceman be permanently disabled at the end of his/her forces period and the infirmity that occasioned his/her incapacity for the performance of duty was occasioned by an injury received during his/her forces period or by a qualifying injury, the Authority may consider paying or increasing any pension payable under the Firemen's Pension Scheme Order 1992, the Firefighters' Pension Scheme (England) Order 2006 and the Firefighters' Pension Scheme (England) Regulations 2014 in accordance with Part 7, Rule 2 and Rule 4 of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme (England) Order 2006, having regard to the limitations in Schedule 6.				

SCHEN	/IE/RULE	REF.		
92	06	COMP	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
-	-	Part 7, Rule 3 and	-	Discretion to increase dependants' benefits under the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 1992 to the level of a flat-rate award if a serviceman dies from the effects of an injury received during his/her forces period or a qualifying injury.
		Rule 4		Should a serviceman –
				(a) die during his/her forces period, or
				(b) be permanently disabled at the end of that period, not since have been a firefighter, and die from the effects of an injury that occasioned his/her incapacity for the performance of duty or while in receipt of a pension,
				the may consider increasing any dependants' benefits as allowed under Part 7, Rule 3 and Rule 4 of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme (England) Order 2006, having regard to the limitations in Schedule 6.
-	-	Part 7A,	-	Discretion to increase an award to a reservist who is permanently disabled as a result of an injury received during his/her forces period or as a result of a qualifying injury.
		Rules 2 and 4		If a person takes up employment with the Authority on or after 6 April 2006 or, having been employed before that date, becomes a member of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006 or the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2015 and becomes a reservist, for the purposes of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme 2006 he/she shall be treated as if they had continued to be a firefighter during the period of relevant service in the armed forces (the "forces period").
				If at the end of the forces period or subsequently after resuming service as a firefighter the person is permanently disabled and the infirmity that occasioned his/her incapacity for the performance of duty was occasioned by an injury received during the forces period or by a qualifying injury, the Fire & Rescue Authority may, according to the circumstances of the case, consider increasing the amount of pension payable under the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006 or the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2015, subject to the limitations of Schedule 7 of the 2006 Order.

SCHEM	E/RULE	REF.		NADDATIVE/DECODIDEION																	
92	06	СОМР	15	- NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION																	
		Part 7A,		Discretion to increase dependants' benefits if a reservist dies from the effects of an injury received during his/her forces period or a qualifying injury.																	
		Rules 3 and 4		If a person takes up employment with the Authority on or after 6 April 2006 or, having been employed before that date becomes a member of the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006 and becomes a reservist, for the purposes of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme 2006 he/she shall be treated as if they had continued to be a firefighter during the period of relevant service in the armed forces (the "forces period").																	
				If the person dies during the forces period or is permanently disabled at the end of the forces period and dies from the effect of an injury that occasions incapacity for the performance of duty the Fire & Rescue Authority may, according to the circumstances of the case, consider increasing the amount of pension payable under the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006 or the Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2015, subject to the limitations of Schedule 7 of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme (England) Order 2006.																	
-	-	Part 8, Rule 1	,	-	Discretion to pay an injury award to or in respect of an employee of a Fire & Rescue Authority who is not a firefighter but who has to retire, or dies, as a result of an injury received without his/her own default while in attendance at a fire in the execution of duties as an employee of the Authority.																
				If an employee who is not a firefighter suffers an injury without their own default –																	
				(a) while in attendance at a fire, and																	
				(b) in the execution of their duties as an employee of the Fire & Rescue Authority, and																	
				(c) has to retire in consequence of the injury																	
				If in the circumstances outlined in (a) and (b) above, the person dies from the effect of the injury, either before or after retiring from the employment, the Authority, having regard to the circumstances of the case, may grant such pension, gratuity or allowance as they think fit to a surviving spouse, civil partner and/or child.																	
				If granted, such awards would be subject to the terms and limits of Part 8, Rule 1 of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme (England) Order 2006.																	

SCHEM	E/RULE F	REF.		NARRATIVE/DESCRIPTION
92	06	СОМР	15	
-	-	Part 9, Rule 4, para. 4		Discretion to restore at any time and to such extent as the Fire & Rescue Authority think fit, a pension withdrawn under Part 9, Rule 4, paragraphs 1 to 3, to the pensioner or to apply it for the benefit of any dependant of the pensioner.
				If the Authority withhold a pension in whole or in part, under Part 9, Rule 4, paragraphs 1 to 3 of the Firefighters' Compensation Scheme (England) Order 2006, according to the circumstances of the case they may determine, at such time as they think fit, to restore it to the pensioner or to apply it for the benefit of any dependant of the pensioner.
		Part 10, Rule 2, para. 7		Discretion to pay a gratuity in instalments, rather than as a lump sum, of such reasonable amounts and over such reasonable period as the Authority thinks fit.